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Plain English Description of the Risk Factors

VT 7
https://www._citibank.com/icg/data/documents
/srp/eu/Multi__Asset/Global _Multi__Asset USD VT 7 Index.pdf
VT 7
Plain English Description of the Index
https://www.citibank.com/icg/data/documents
/srp/eu/Multi__Asset/Global _Multi_ Asset USD VT 7 Index_ Plain_ English_ Disclosure.pdf
VT 7 Plain
English Description of the Risk Factors
https://www._citibank.com/icg/data/documents
/srp/eu/Multi__Asset/Global _Multi_ Asset USD VT 7 Index_ Risk Factors.pdf

VT 7
https://www._citibank.com/icg/data/documents
/srp/eu/Multi__Asset/Global _Multi__Asset AUD_ VT 7 Index.pdf
VT 7
Plain English Description of the Index
https://www.citibank.com/icg/data/documents
/srp/eu/Multi__Asset/Global _Multi_ Asset AUD_ VT 7 Index_ Plain_ English_ Disclosure.pdf
VT 7 Plain
English Description of the Risk Factors
https://www._citibank.com/icg/data/documents
/srp/eu/Multi__Asset/Global _Multi_ Asset AUD VT 7 Index_Risk Factors.pdf
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97,676,160.92 92.61
7,348,357.46 6.97
442,227.29 0.42
105,466,745.67
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2021
SERENADE
INV CORP SA 2022
0.00 72,689,786.16 | 83,474,720 | 82,823,617.18 | 78.53
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2021

18.4958 S38 USD Index Swap CB CIXBPFB7<Index> 10,006,352.61 5,798,324.17

10.2009 S38 AUD Index Swap CB CIXBGMA7<Index> 2,255,292.88 1,995,357.85
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2021
2018 12 151,741,574.31 16,529,210 10.212 1,112
2019 12 117,656,955.04 12,816,372 10.996 1,198
2020 12 93,637,709.70 10,199,956 10.494 1,143
2020 100,754,165.47 10,975,151 10.219 1,113
100,456,148.28 10,942,688 10.244 1,116
100,506,680.60 10,948,193 10.283 1,120
98,836,018.78 10,766,208 10.250 1,117
97,215,803.09 10,589,717 10.264 1,118
10 94,723,754.47 10,318,259 10.244 1,116
11 95,381,038.74 10,389,857 10.407 1,134
12 93,637,709.70 10,199,956 10.494 1,143
2021 93,053,313.55 10,136,297 10.556 1,150
91,235,277.32 9,938,259 10.607 1,155
89,511,288.41 9,750,465 10.550 1,149
89,020,086.92 9,696,958 10.665 1,162
2018 12 36,152,192.99 3,063,898 10.298 873
2019 12 28,909,539.25 2,450,083 11.291 957
2020 12 23,441,967.65 1,986,707 10.780 914
2020 24,462,561.66 2,073,202 10.368 879
24,426,836.63 2,070,174 10.388 880
24,626,895.40 2,087,129 10.478 888
24,474,468.14 2,074,211 10.448 885
24,148,146.47 2,046,555 10.481 888
10 23,683,568.71 2,007,182 10.469 887
11 23,853,395.51 2,021,575 10.690 906
12 23,441,967.65 1,986,707 10.780 914
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2021 23,256,549.88 1,970,993 10.848 919
22,164,991.24 1,878,483 10.855 920
21,606,198.45 1,831,125 10.847 919
21,171,783.81 1,794,309 10.996 932
2.12
7.68
4.57
2.98
9.64
4.53
100x
10.00 10.00
15,776,049.528 917,379.672 14,858,669.856
15,776,049.528 917,379.672 14,858,669.856

0.000
0.000

4,158,651.802
4,158,651.802

10,700,018.054
10,700,018.054

0.000
0.000

1,776,776.839
1,776,776.839

8,923,241.215
8,923,241.215

3,701,790.586 191,348.725 3,510,441.861
3,701,790.586 191,348.725 3,510,441.861
0.000 950,077.712 2,560,364.149
0.000 950,077.712 2,560,364.149

66/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
ooooodoooiooooooodod

0.000 385,808.670 2,174,555.479
0.000 385,808.670 2,174,555.479

67/261



30

16

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

68/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1,000

10
10

69/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1,000

70/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.0005

71/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

72/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2157 10 21

12 31

73/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

149

90

90

90

74/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

75/261



14

10

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

10

76/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

77/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

131

23 103

2021 30
108.93 84.75

78/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1802

2020 12 31
92,285,833.31 10,052,696
2.2 104,813,808.90 11,417,368
9 6,269,700.77 682,959
551,133.81 60,035
9 63,098.25 6,873
111,697,741.73 12,167,235
8 46,538.86 5,069
28,923.01 3,151
16,731.74 1,823
11,406.25 1,242
6 9,657.19 1,052
4 7,025.85 765
3 3,763.65 410
5 3,509.53 382
7 879.19 96
6.73 1
128,442.00 13,991
111,569,299.73 12,153,244
23,441,967.65 1,986,707
93,637,709.70 10,199,956

2,174,555.479
8,923,241.215

10.780 914
10.494 1,143
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1802
2020 12 31

2.4 857,090.33 93,363

857,090.33 93,363

8 604,666.90 65,866

6 125,491.48 13,670

4 91,264.30 9,941

5 45,635.61 4,971

28,427.50 3,007

19,132.68 2,084

3 14,880.76 1,621

12,044.83 1,312

7 11,412.98 1,243

7,146.37 778

5,320.76 580

167.17 18

965,591.34 105,182

(108,501.01) (11,819)

2,049,184.77 223,218

2.3 1,360,027.30 148,148

(1,081,968.71) (117,859)

2,218,742.35 241,688

3,429,826.52 373,611

(9,352,950.27) (1,018,817)

(3,704,381.40) (403,518)

(21,558,374.43) (2,348,354)

(21,558,374.43) (2,348,354)

136,832,055.56 14,905,116

111,569,299.73 12,153,244
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1802
3,510,441.861 14,858,669.856
2,560,364.149 10,700,018.054
(385,808.670) (1,776,776.839)
2,174,555.479 8,923,241.215

36,152,192.99 3,063,898  151,741,574.31 16,529,210

28,608,196.83 2,424,545  116,844,494.02 12,727,871

23,441,967.65 1,986,707 93,637,709.70 10,199,956

10.298 873 10.212 1,112

11.173 947 10.920 1,190

10.780 914 10.494 1,143
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1802
2020 12 31
1802
2017 11 30
100
2022 12 30
2020 12 31
7.77 92.01
5.21 94.32
CGML
0.77

2.1
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2.4

15,000

0.08

0.04

0.11

0.01

0.53
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CGML
63,098.25
2020 12 31
9.1
11.6508 $38 AUD Index Swap CB CIXBGMA7<Index> 2,575,847.86 1,822,136.54
9.2
19.8483 $38 USD Index Swap CB CIXBPFB7<Index> 10,738,064.22 4,875,884.09
12,708,421.34 6,269,700.77
10
ISDA CSA
2020 12 31 6,420,137.83 CGML
6,190,000
250,000
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11.1
2008 10 21 50
11.2
12
2020 12 31
1.3073
13
COVID-19

14
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1802
2020 12 31

SERENADE INVESTMENT CORP SA ZERO
21,747,501 COUPON 12/28/2022 AUD 19,061,684.65 21,569,171.49 92.01
19,061,684.65 21,569,171.49 92.01
19,061,684.65 21,569,171.49 92.01

SERENADE INVESTMENT CORP SA ZERO
89,233,896 COUPON 12/28/2022 USD 77,704,876.64 88,314,786.87 94.32
77,704,876.64 88,314,786.87 94.32
77,704,876.64 88,314,786.87 94.32

92,285,833.31 104,813,808.90 93.95
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of net assets as at December 31, 2020

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Notes UsD_
Assets
Investrents
At cost 92 285833.31
At market value 2.2 104,813, 808.90
Swap contracts at market value 9 6,269 700,77
Cash at bank 551,133.81
Interest receivable on swaps 9 63,058.25
“Total assets 111,697,741.73
Liabilities
Distributor fees payable 8 46,538.86
Professional fees payable 28923.01
Printing and publishing fees payable 16,731.74
Legal fees payable 11,406.25
Management fees payable 6 965719
Administrator fees payable 4 702585
Trustee fees payable 3 3,763.65
Custodian fees payable 5 3,509.53
Agent Company fees payable 7 879.189
Interest Payable on cash 6.73
“Total liabilities 128 ,442.00
Total net assets 111,568 299.73
Net asset value
AUD Denominated Units ALID 23,9441 967,65
USD Denominated Units usD 93,637,709.70
Number of units outstanding
AUD Denominated Units 2,174,555479
USD Denominated Units 8923 241215
Net asset value per unit
AUD Denominated Units ALID 10,780
USD Denominated Units usp 10,494

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staterments.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2020

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Notes LUsD
Income
Interest income on swaps 24 B857,090.33
Total income 857,090.33
Expenses
Distributor fees ] 604 666,90
Management fees 6 125,491 .48
Administrator fees 4 91,264.30
Custodian fees 5 4563561
Professional expenses 28427.50
Printing and publishing expenses 19,132.68
Trustee fees 3 14,880.7%
Legal expenses 1204482
Agent Company fees 7 11,412 .98
Bank interest 714637
Safekeeping fees 5.320.76
Transaction fees 167.17
Total expenses 965,591.24
Netinvestment loss (108,501.01)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staterments.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2020
{continued)

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Net investment loss (108,501.01)
Net realised:

Gain on investrments 2,049,184.77
Gain on foreign exchange 2.3 1,360,027.30

Loss on swap contracts

(1,081,968.71)

“Total net investment loss and realised gain for the year 2,218,742.35
Net unrealised:
Appreciation on investments 3,429,826.52
Depreciation on swap contracts (9,352,950.27)
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations (3,704,381 40)

Movement in capital:

Redemptions of units (21,558,374.43)
Net movement in capital (21,558,374.43)
Net assets at the beginning of the year 136,832 055.56
Net assets at the end of the year 111,569,209.73

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staterments.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statistical information UNAUDITED

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

“Number of units outstanding at the end of AUD Denominated Units USD Denominated Units
_the year
December 31, 2018 3,510 441.861 14,858 669.856
Decernber 31, 2019 2,560, 364,149 10,700,018.054
number of units issued - -
number of units redeemed (385,808.670) (1,776,776.839)
December 31, 2020 2,174 555479 8,923,241.215
Net assets at the end of the year AUD Denominated Units USD Denominated Units

December 31, 2018

AUD 36,152,192.99

USD 151,741,574.31

December 31, 2019 AUD 28 ,608,196.83 UsD 116,844,494.02
December 31, 2020 AUD 23,441 957.65 UsD 93,637,709.70
_Net assets per unit AUD Denominated Units USD Denominated Units _
December 31, 2018 ALUD 10,298 usD 10212
December 31, 2019 AUD 11.173 USD 10.920
Decamber 31, 2020 AUD 10.780 USD 10.494
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements

{As at December 31, 2020)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Note 1 - Activity

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802 (the “Series Trust™), a series trust of the Trust created
and established pursuant to the Trust Deed and a supplemental trust deed made on November 30,
2017 between the Trustee and the Manager.

Investment objective and policies
The Series Trust's investment objectives are ko provide investors with a return which is linked to:

(a) a portfolio which aims to achieve the Target Redemption Level i.e. 100% of the Issue Price
of each class of Units at the Maturity Date (*) (the "Fixed Portion™); and

(b) a portfolio which provides a leveraged exposure to the Index of each class of Units
(the "Active Portion").

(*): The "Maturity Date” means December 30, 2022 or such other date as the Manager may
determine,

The allocation bebween the Active Portion and Fixed Portion was fixed shortly after the launch date of
the Series Trust with the objective that the minimum amount that is necessary in order to achieve the
Target Redemption Level would be allocated to the Fixed Portion, with the remaining balance being
allocated to the Active Portion, As of December 31, 2020, the allocation to the Active Portion and Fixed
Portion for the AUD Units were 7.77% and 52.01% of the Net Asset Value respectively and the
allocation to the Active Portion and Fixed Portion for the USD Units were 5.21% and 94.32% of the
Net Asset Value respectively,

Each class of Units invests in the notes issued by Serenade Investment Corporation SA to achieve a
target return of the Issue Price applicable to such class of units at the Maturity Date and enters into
over-the-counter swap transactions or equivalent instruments with Citigroup Global Markets Limited
{"CGML"), a related party of the Manager, that provides a leveraged exposure to the Index applicable
to such class of Units.

Under the Active Portion Swap Transactions, the Series Trust will receive a coupon of 0.77% per annum
of the Target Redemption Level multiplied by the number of Units in issue at the ime of calculation of
the relevant class of Units (the "Target Redemption Amount") and payable on a monthly basis
which will be used to settle certain operating costs and expenses in respect of the Series Trust.

Mote 2 - Significant accounting policies

2.1 - Presentation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles applicable to investment funds in Luxembourg.

2.2 - Valuation of the investments

The Administrator will calculate and publish the Net Asset Value per Unit in the applicable Class Base
Currency on the Closing Date and on each Valuation Day.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

MNotes to the financial statements (continued)

{As at December 31, 2020)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Mote 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 - Valuation of the investments (continued)

The Net Asset Value per Unit will be calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value by the number of Units
in issue. The Net Asset Value per Unit will be rounded to 3 decimal places (according to natural
rounding convention with 0.0005 being rounded up) or to such other number of decimal places as
determined by the Manager, after consultation with the Trustee.

In determining the Met Asset Value and the Net Asset Value per Unit, the Administrator will follow the
following valuation policies and procedures:

{a) subject as provided in paragraphs (b) and (c) below, all calculations based on the value of
Investments listed, quoted, traded or dealt in on any stock exchange, commodities exchange, futures
exchange or over-the-counter market will be made by the Administrator by reference to the last traded
price or official closing price according to its local rules and customs on the principal exchange for such
Investments as at the close of business in such place on the day as of which such calculation is to be
made, if the Valuation Day is not a business day for such place, on the last business day for such place
preceding the Valuation Day; and where there is no stock exchange, commodities exchange, futures
exchange or over-the-counter market for a particular Investment, the value of such Investment will be
calculated by reference to the latest available price of such Investment quoted by any person, firm or
institution making a market in that Investment (and if there shall be more than one such market maker
then such particular market maker as the Manager, in consultation with the Trustee, may designate);
provided always that if the Manager, in consultation with the Trustee, in its discretion considers that
the prices on ancther exchange or prices provided by any independent data provider, including
Bloomberg or Interactive Data Corporation provide in all the circumstances a fairer criterion of value
in relation to any such Investment, it may instruct the adoption of such prices;

(b} if no last traded price, official closing price and other price quotations are available as provided in
paragraph {a) above, the value of the relevant Investment will be determined from time to time in
such manner as the Manager (in consultation with the Trustee) shall determine;

(<) for the purpose of ascertaining the listed, quoted, traded or market dealing prices of any Investment
pursuant to paragraph (a) or (b) above, the Administrator is entitled to use and rely upon price data
and/or information provided by any mechanised andfor electronic systems of price dissemination and
the prices provided by any such system will be deemed to be the last traded prices, official closing
price, or the latest available price for the purpose of paragraph (a) or (b) above;

(d) short-term money market Investments and bank deposits will be valued at cost plus accrued
interest;

{e) the value of any Investment {whether of a security or cash) denominated in a currency other than
the Furctional Currency shall be converted into the Functional Currency at the rate (whether official or
otherwise) which the Administrator deems appropriate in the circumstances having regard to any
premium or discount which may be relevant and to costs of exchange;
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

MNotes to the financial statements (continued)

{As at December 31, 2020)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Mote 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 - Valuation of the investments (continued)

(f) swap transactions and other over-the-counter derivative transactionsfinstruments will be valued
based on the net present value of their expected cash flows. Where the calculation agent for such
swap ftransactions or other over-the-counter derivative transactionsfinstruments is also the
counterparty, and in order to avoid any conflicts of interests arising from such dual capacity, the
Manager or its delegate will be required to perform tolerance checks in respect of such valuation with
a frequency at least equal to that of the calculation of the Net Asset Value; and

{g) notwithstanding the foregoing, the Manager (in consultation with the Trustee) may permit some
other method of valuation to be used if it considers that such valuation better reflects the fair value of
the relevant Investment.

2.3 - Foreign currency translation

The Series Trust is denominated in US dollar (USD). Classes of units are denominated in USD and
Australian Dollar {AUD).

Assets and liabilities expressed in other currencies than the US dollar are translated into USD at
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting year. Transactions expressed in foreign currencies
are translated into USD at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates.

Unrealised and realised gains or losses on foreign exchange translations are recognised in the
Statement of operations and changes in net assets in determining the result of the reporting year.

Unrealised foreign exchange gains or losses arising on the valuation of the portfolio at market value
are included in net change in unrealised on appreciation or depreciation on investments. Realised
foreign exchange gains or losses arising on sale of investments and derivatives are included in realized
gains or losses on investments and derivatives. Other net foreign exchange gains or losses are included
in realized gains and losses on foreign exchange in the Statement of operations and changes in net
assefs,

2.4 - Interest income on swaps

Interest income is accrued on a daily basis.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

MNotes to the financial statements (continued)
{As at December 31, 2020)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Mote 3 - Trustee fees

The Trustee, a related party to the Series Trust,is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the Series
Trust a trustee fee of USD 15,000 per annum, calculated and accrued daily and payable quarterly in
arrears.

Mote 4 - Administrator fees

The Administrator is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the Series Trust an administration fes
of 0.08% per annum of the Target Redemption Amount calculated and accrued daily in each class of
units and payable monthly in arrears.

Note 5 - Custodian fees

The Custodian is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the Series Trust a custody fee of 0.04%
per annum of the Target Redemption Amount calculated and accrued daily in each class of units and
payable manthly in arrears.

Note 6 - Management fees

The Manager, a related party to the Series Trust, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the
Series Trust a management fee of 0.11% per annum of the Target Redemption Amount, calculated
and accrued daily in each class of units and payable monthly in arrears.

Note 7 - Agent Company fees

The Agent Company, a related party of the Manager, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the
Series Trust a fee of up to 0.01% per annum of the Target Redemption Amount, calculated and accrued
daily in each class of units and payable monthly in arrears.

Note 8 - Distributor fees

The Distributor, a related party of the Manager, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the Series
Trust a fee of up to 0.53%: per annum of the Target Redemption Amount in respect of each class of
units, calculated and accrued daily in each class of units and payable monthly in arrears.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Motes to the financial statements (continued)

{As at December 31, 2020)

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Note 9 - Swap contracts

Swap transactions that provide for the Active Portion are entered into between two parties, the

Manager, acting as agent for the Trustee, and CGML.

In the Statement of net assets, this coupon accrued interest receivable is reflected under the item

"Interest receivable on swaps” of USD 63,098.25.
As at December 31, 2020, the Series Trust has entered into the following swap contract:

9.1 - Swap contracts of AUD Denominated Units

Quantity Index Swap Ccy Index Ticker Cost Market value
11.6508 538 AUD Index Swap AUD  CB CIXBGMAT <Index= 2,575,847 86 1,822 136.54

9.2 - Swap contracts of USD Denominated Units

Quantity Index Swap Coy Index Ticker Cost Market value
19.8483 S38 USD Index Swap __ USD  CB CIXBPFB7<Index>  10,738,064.22 __ 4,875,884.09
_ Total (combined) Cey Cost Market value
UsD 12,708,421.34 6,269,700.77

Mote 10 - Collateral arrangement

In order to mitigate the counterparty risk exposure arising from the swap transactions, the Trustee,
for the account of the Series Trust, has entered into a collateral arrangement with the swap
counterparty. This arrangement is based on an industry-standard ISDA (International Swaps and
Derivatives Association) Master Agresment and a CSA (Credit Support Annex). In terms of this
arrangement, the swap counterparty delivers cash (USD) collateral to the Custodian for the account
of the Series Trust. The collateral pool is marked to market and adjusted on each Valuation Day.

As at December 31, 2020, the amount of collateral required is USD 6,420,137.83 and the amount of
collateral received from CGML and deposited into a collateral account for the benefit of the Series
Trust is USD 6,190,000, Please note that the difference between the minimum required and actual
collateral received is below the minimum transfer amount of USD 250,000,
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Motes to the financial statements (continued)

{As at December 31, 2020)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Note 11 - Taxation

11.1 - Cayman Islands

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands and the Trust has received an undertaking
from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local income, profits and
capital taxes for a period of 50 years from October 21, 2008, the date of the creation of the Trust.
Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in these financial statements.

11.2 - Other Countries

The Series Trust may be subject to withholding or other taxes on certain income sourced in other
countries,

Note 12 — Exchange rates
The exchange rates against USD used as at December 31, 2020 are as follows:

Curren Exc e rate
AUD 1,3073

Note 13 - Significant events during the year

The Manager has made an assessment of the situation of the Series Trust in the context of the
COVID-192 pandemic and, while financial markets have been very volatile and the worldwide health
situation remains difficult, confirms that it has no plan to terminate the Series Trust either as of the
date of the Auditors” opinion or in the foreseeable future. The Manager will continue to closely monitor
the situation of the Series Trust in the best interests of the unitholders.

Note 14 - Subsequent events

In preparing these financial statements, the Series Trust concludes that there are no significant
subsequent events that require adjustment andfor disclosure to these financial statements.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Schedule of investments as at December 31, 2020

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

AUD Denominated Units

Norninal  Description Cumency Cost Market value Ratio™

Note AUD AUD %

21,747,501 SERENADE INVESTMENT CORP SA ZERO AUD 1906168465 21,569,17149 92.01
COUPON 12/28/2022 AUD

“Total note 19,061,664.65 21,569,17149 92.01

“Total investrment 19,061,684.65 21,560,171.49 92.01_

USD Denominated Units

Nominal _Description Currency Cost __ Market value _Ratio™

Note USD UsD %

89,233,896 SERENADE INVESTMENT CORP SA ZERO usD 7770487664 §8,314,78687 94.32
COUPON 12/28/2022 USD

Total Note 7770457664 8831478687 0432

“Total investrent 77,704,876.64 _ 88,314,786.87 94.32

Total investment (combined) uso 9228583331 10481380890 9395

This schedule contains information on the investrments in notes only and does not include the inforrmation on the swap
contracts. Information on the swap contracts is disclosed in Note 9 to these financial staterments.

(*) Weight of the market value against the total net assets expressed in %.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Classification of investments by country and by economical secbor UNAUDITED

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802
Total (combined)

Classification of investrents by country and by economical sector

Country Economical sector Ratio (%) *
Luxembourg

Other Rnandal Service Activities, Except Insurance And Fension Funding N.E.C. 93.95

_Total investments 93.95

This schedule cantains infarmation on the investments in notes only and does not include the information on the
swap contracts. Information on the swap contracts is disclosed in Mote 9 to these financial statements

(*) Weight of the market value against the total net assets expressed in %.
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1802

2019 12 31
108,598,170.80 11,829,599
117,696,319.87 12,820,660
9 18,280,692.71 1,991,316
940,961.29 102,499
9 73,436.35 7,999
556.71 61
136,991, 966.93 14,922,535
8 54,933.82 5,984
34,913.93 3,803
25,838.58 2,815
15,582.04 1,697
6 11,404.41 1,242
4 8,292.14 903
5 4,143.22 451
3 3,764.36 410
7 1,038.87 113
159,911.37 17,419
136,832,055.56 14,905,116
28,909,539.25 2,450,083
117,656,955.04 12,816,372

13

(301,342.42) (25,539)
(812,461.02) (88,501)
28,608,196.83 2,424,545
116,844,494.02 12,727,871

2,560,364.149
10,700,018.054

11.173 947
10.920 1,190
11.291 957

10.996 1,198
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1802
2019 12 31

2.4 1,107,242.86 120,612

1,107,242.86 120,612

8 768,827.33 83,748

6 159,579.49 17,383

4 116,035.22 12,640

5 58,032.70 6,322

25,501.02 2,778

25,160.20 2,741

17,624.84 1,920

3 15,063.02 1,641

7 14,507.70 1,580

12,804.21 1,395

6,735.17 734

206.07 22

643.33 70

1,220,720.30 132,973

(113,477.44) (12,361)

2.2 2,186,938.98 238,223

2.2 1,057,174.57 115,158

2.3 (204,157.27) (22,239)

2,926,478.84 318,781

2.2 6,002,019.86 653,800

2.2 2,063,524.67 224,780

10,992,023.37 1,197,361

(51,396,741.69) (5,598,647)

(51,396,741.69) (5,598,647)

177,236,773.88 19,306,402

136,832,055.56 14,905,116
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1802
3,510,441.861 14,858, 669.856
(950,077.712) (4,158,651.802)
2,560,364.149 10,700,018.054

36,152,192.99 3,063,898  151,741,574.31 16,529,210

28,608,196.83 2,424,545  116,844,494.02 12,727,871

10.298 873 10.212 1,112

11.173 947 10.920 1,190

104/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1802
2019 12 31
1802
2017 11 30
100
2022 12 30
2019 12 31
14.00 84.65
13.25 86.25

0.77

105/261



2.2

2.3

0.0005

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

106/261



2.4

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15,000

0.08

0.04

0.11

0.01

107/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.53
CFIM CGML
2022 12 16
73,436.35
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13.659 $38 AUD Index Swap CB CIXBGMA7<Index> 3,019,836.06 4,004,953.18
9.2
24.3791 $38 USD Index Swap CB CIXBPFB7<Index> 13,189,257.54 15,482,569.90
15,299,112.96 18,280,692.71
10
1SDA CSA
2019 12 31 14,454,424.70

14,760,000.00
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of net assets as at December 31, 2019

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Notes usb
Assets
Investments
At cost 108,598,170.80
At rmarket value 117,696,319.87
Swap contracts at market value 9 18,280,692.71
Cash at bank 940,961 29
Interest receivable on swaps 9 73436.35
Interest receivable on cash 556.71
“Total assets 136,991,966.93
Liabilities
Cistributor fees payable 8 54,933.82
Legal fees payable 34913.93
Professional fees payable 25838.58
Printing and publishing fees payable 15,582.04
Managerrent fees payable 6 1140441
Administrator fees payable 4 B,292.14
Custodian fees payable 5 414322
Trustee fees payable 3 3,764.36
Agent Company feses payable 7 103887
Total liabilities 159,911.37_
“Total net assets 136,832,055.56

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staterments,
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of net assets as at December 31, 2019 (continued)

Target Setting at Matunty Fund 1802

Reconciliation to total net assets as reported by the Administrator

MNet asset value (as reported by the Administrator)

ALID Denominated Units ALD 28,909, 539.25

LUSD Denominated Units uso 117,656,955.04
Adjustment in investment market value 13

AUD Denominated Units AUD (301,342 42)

USD Denominated Units UsD (812 461.02)
Net asset value (as per financial statements)

ALID Denominated Units ALID 28,608,196.83

USD Denominated Units UsD 116,644 494.02
Number of units nutxt-lnd-ing

ALD Denominated Units 2,560, 364.149

USD Denominated Units 10,700,018.054
MNet asset value per unit (as per financal s@tements)

ALID Denominated Units ALD 11173

USD Denominated Units uso 10.920
Net asset value per unit (as reported by the
Administrator)

AUD Denorminated Units ALD 11291

USD Denominated Units ush 10.996

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2019

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Notes

Income

Interest income on swaps 24 1,107 24286
Total income 1,107 242 86
Expenses

Distributor fees 8 768,827.33
Management fees 6 158,579.49
Administrator fees 4 116,035.22
Custodian fees 5 58.032.70
Professional expenses 25,501.02
Legal expenses 25,160.20
Frinting and publishing expenses 17 62484
Trustee fees 3 15,063.02
Agent Company fees 7 14,507.70
Bank interest 12 80421
Safekeeping fees 6,735.17
Transaction fees 206.07
Orther fees 643.33
Total expenses 1,220,720.30
Net investment loss (113.477.44)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2019

(continued)

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Net investment loss (113,477.49)
MNet realised:

Gain on investments 22 2,186,938.98
(3ain on swap oontracts 2.2 1,057,174.57
Loss on foreign exchange 2.3 (204,157.27)
Total net investment loss and realised gain for the year 2,926 478.84
Net unrealised:

Apprecation on investments 2.2 6,002,019.856
Appreqation on swap contracts 2.2 2,063 52467
Net increase in net assets resulting from operations 10,992,023.37

Movement in capital:

Redemptions of units (51,396,741.69)
Net movement in capital (51,396,741.69)
Net assets at the beginning of the year 177,236,77388
Net assets at the end of the year 136 832 055.56

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statistical informabion

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Number of units sutstanding at the end of AUD Denominated Units USD Denominated Units
the year
December 31, 2018 3,510,441.861 14,858,669.856
nummier of units isswed - -
nurmber of units redeemed (950,077.712) (4,158,651.802)
December 31, 2019 2,560,364. 140 10,700,018.054
Net assets at the end of the year AUD Denominated Units USD Denominated Units
Decernber 31, 2018 AUD 36,152,192.99 USD 151,741,574.31
December 31, 2019 AUD 28 608,196 83 USD 116,844,494.02
MM‘ AJD L -u...'.l'- e A

December 31, 2018 AUD 10.228 usD 10212
Decernber 31, 2019 AUD 11.173 usD 10.920
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements

{As at December 31, 2019)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Note 1 - Activity

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802 (the “Series Trust™), a series trust of the Trust created
and established pursuant to the Trust Deed and a supplemental trust deed made on November
30, 2017 between the Trustee and the Manager.

Investment objective and policies
The Series Trust’s investment objectives are to provide investors with a return which is linked to:

{a) a portfolio which aims to achieve the Target Redemption Level i.e. 100% of the Issue Price
of each class of Units at the Maturity Date (*) (the "Fixed Portion"}; and

(b) a portfolio which provides a leveraged exposure to the Index of each class of Units  (the
“Active Portion").

(*): The "Maturity Date" means December 30, 2022 or such other date as the Manager may
determine.

The allocation between the Active Portion and Fixed Portion was fixed shortly after the launch date of
the Series Trust with the objective that the minimum amount that is necessary in order to achieve the
Target Redemption Level would be allocated to the Fixed Portion, with the remaining balance being
allocated to the Active Portion. As of December 31, 2019, the allocation to the Active Portion and Fixed
Portion for the AUD Units were 14.00% and 84.565% of the Net Asset Value respectively and the
allocation to the Active Portion and Fixed Portion for the USD Units were 13.25 % and 86.25% of the
Net Asset Value respectively.

Each class of Units invests in the notes issued by Serenade Investment Corporation SA to achieve a
target return of the Issue Price applicable to such class of units at the Maturity Date and enters into
over-the-counter swap transactions or equivalent instruments with Citigroup Global Markets Limited
that provides a leveraged exposure to the Index applicable to such class of Units.

Under the Active Portion Swap Transactions, the Series Trust will receive a coupon of 0.77% per annum
of the Target Redemption Level multiplied by the number of Units in issue at the time of calculation of
the relevant class of Units (the "Target Redemption Amount") and payable on a monthly basis
which will be used to settle certain operating costs and expenses in respect of the SeriesTrust.

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies

2.1 - Presentation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in Luxembourg applicable to investment funds,

2.2 - Valuation of the investments in securities

The Administrator will calculate and publish the Net Asset Value per Unit in the applicable Class Base
Currency on the Closing Date and on each Valuation Day.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
{As at December 31, 2019)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Note 2 - Signiﬁcant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 - Valuation of the investments in securities {continued)

The Net Asset Value per Unit will be caleulated by dividing the Net Asset Value by the number of Units
in issue. The Net Asset Value per Unit will be rounded to 3 decimal places (according to natural rounding
convention with 0.0005 being rounded up) or to such other number of decimal places as determined
by the Manager, after consultation with the Trustee.

In determining the Net Asset Value and the Net Asset Value per Unit, the Administrator will follow the
following valuation policies and procedures:

(a) subject as provided in paragraphs (b) and (<) below, all calculations based on the value of
Investments listed, quoted, traded or dealt in on any stock exchange, commodities exchange, futures
exchange or over-the-counter market will be made by the Administrator by reference to the last traded
price or official closing price according to its local rules and customs on the principal exchange for such
Investments as at the close of business in such place on the day as of which such calculation is to be
made, if the Valuation Day is not a business day for such place, on the last business day for such place
preceding the Valuation Day; and where there is no stock exchange, commodities exchange, futures
exchange or over-the-counter market for a particular Investment, the value of such Investment will be
calculated by reference to the latest available price of such Investment quoted by any person, firm or
institution making a market in that Investment (and if there shall be more than one such market maker
then such particular market maker as the Manager, in consultation with the Trustee, may designate);
provided always that if the Manager, in consultation with the Trustee, in its discretion considers that
the prices on another exchange or prices provided by any independent data provider, including
Bloomberg or Interactive Data Corporation provide in all the circumstances a fairer criterion of value
in relation to any such Investment, it may instruct the adoption of such prices;

(b)) if no last traded price, official closing price and other price quotations are available as provided in
paragraph (a) above, the value of the relevant Investment will be determined from time to time in
such manner as the Manager {in consultation with the Trustee) shall determine;

(<) for the purpose of ascertaining the listed, quoted, traded or market dealing prices of any Investment
pursuant to paragraph (2) or (b) above, the Administrator is entitled to use and rely upon price data
and/or information provided by any mechanised and/or electronic systems of price dissemination and
the prices provided by any such system will be deemed to be the last traded prices, official closing
price, or the latest available price for the purpose of paragraph (a) or (b) above;

{(d) short-term money market Investments and bank deposits will be valued at cost plus accrued
interest;

(&) the value of any Investment {whether of a security or cash) denominated in a currency other than
the Functional Currency shall be converted into the Functional Currency at the rate (whether official or
otherwise) which the Administrator deems appropriate in the circumstances having regard to any
premium or discount which may be relevant and to costs of exchange;
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
{As at December 31, 2019)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 - Valuation of the investments in securities {continued)

(f) swap fransactions and other over-the-counter derivative transactions/instruments will be valued
based on the net present value of their expected cash flows. Where the calculation agent for such
swap transactions or other over-the-counter derivative transactionsfinstruments is also the
counterparty, and in order to avoid any conflicts of interests arising from such dual capacity, the
Manager or its delegate will be required to perform tolerance checks in respect of such valuation with
a frequency at least equal to that of the calculation of the Net Asset Value; and

{g) notwithstanding the foregoing, the Manager (in consultation with the Trustee) may permit some

other method of valuation to be used if it considers that such valuation better reflects the fair value of
the relevant Investment.

2.3 - Foreign currency translation

The Series Trust is denominated US dollar {USD). Classes of units are denominated in USD and
Australian Dollar (AUD).

Assets and liabilities expressed in other currencies than the US dollar are translated into USD at
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting year. Transactions expressed in foreign currencies
are translated into USD at exchange rates prevailing at the transactiondates.

Unrealised and realised gains or losses on foreign exchange translations are recognised in the
Statement of operations and changes in net assets in determining the result of the reporting year.

Unrealised foreign exchange gains or losses arising on the valuation of the portfolio at market value
are included in net change in unrealised on appreciation or depreciation on investments, Other net
foreign exchange gains or losses are directly taken into the Statement of operations and changes in
net assels,

2.4 - Interest income on Swaps

Interest income is accrued on a daily basis.
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Red Arc Global Investments {(Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
{As at December 31, 2019)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Note 3 - Trustee fees

The Trustee is entitled to receive out of the Trust Fund of the Series Trust a trustee fee of USD 15,000
per annum, calculated and accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears.

Note 4 - Administrator fees

The Administrator is entitled to receive out of the Trust Fund of the Series Trust an administration fee
of 0.08% per annum of the Target Redemption Amount calculated and accrued daily in each class of
units and payable monthly in arrears.

Note 5 - Custodian fees

The Custodian is entitled to receive out of the Trust Fund of the Series Trust a custody fee of 0.04%
per annum of the Target Redemption Amount calculated and accrued daily in each class of units and
pavable meonthly in arrears.

Note 6 - Management fees

The Manager is entitled to receive out of the Trust Fund of the Series Trust a management fee of
0.11% per annum of the Target Redemption Amount, calculated and accrued daily in each class of
units and payable monthly in arrears.

Note 7 - Agent Company fees

The Agent Company is entitled to receive out of the Trust Fund of the Series Trust a fee of up to 0.01%
per annum of the Target Redemption &mount, calculated and accrued daily in each class of units and
payable monthly in arrears.

Note 8 - Distributor fees
The Distributor is entitled to receive out of the Trust Fund of the Series Trust a fee of up to 0.53% per

annum of the Target Redemption Amount in respect of each class of Units calculated and accrued daily
and payable monthly in arrears.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

{As at December 31, 2019)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Note 9 - Swap Contracts

Swap ransactions are entered into between two parties, Citigroup First Investment Management
Umited ("CFIM™) and Citlgroup Global Markets Limited ("CGML") that provides the Active Portion.

The swaps maturity date is December 16, 2022. It is the Manager's intention to keep on rolling these
swaps until termination of the Series Trust.

In the Statement of net assets, this coupon accrued interest receivable is reflected under the item
"Interest receivable on swaps” of USD 73,436.35.

As at December 31, 2019, the Series Trust has entered into the following open swap contracts:

9.1 - Swap contracts of AUD Denominated Units
Quantity Index Swap Cey Index Ticker Cost Markat valus

13.659 538 AUD Index Swap ___AUD__CB CIXBGMA7<Index> ___ 3,019.836.06____ 4,004,953.18

9.2 - Swap contracts of USD Denominated Units

_ Quantity  Index Swap Cey Index Ticker Cost Market value
243791 538 USD Index Swap __ USD  CB CINBPFB/<Index>  13,189,257.54 _ 15,462,569.90

Total {combined) Coy Cost Market value

usp 15299,11296 18,280,652 71

Note 10 - Collateral arrangement

In order to mitigate the counterparty risk exposure arising from the swap transactions, the Trustee,
for the account of the Series Trust, has entered into a collateral arrangement with the swap
counterparty (a related party). This arrangement is based on an industry-standard ISDA (International
Swaps and Derivatives Association) Master Agreement and a CSA (Credit Support Annex). In terms of
this arrangement, the swap counterparty delivers cash (USD) collateral to the Custodian for the account
of the Series Trust. The collateral pool is marked to market and adjusted on each Valuation Day.

As at December 31, 2019, the amount of collateral required is USD 14,454,424.70 and the amount of
collateral received and deposited into the collateral account is USD 14,760,000.00,
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

{As at December 31, 2019)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Note 11 - Taxation

11.1 - Cayman Islands

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands and the Trust has received an undertaking
from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local income, profits and
capital taxes for a period of 50 years from October 21, 2008, the date of the creation of the Trust.
Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in these financial statements.

11.2 - Other Countries

The Series Trust may be subject to withholding or other taxes on certain income sourced in other
countries.

Note 12 — Exchange rates

The exchange rates against USD used as at December 31, 2019 are as follows:

Currency Exchange rate
ALD 1.4313

Mote 132 - Adjustment in investment market value

The net asset values of the AUD and USD Denominated Units as at December 31, 2019 were calculated
in accordance with the valuation principles as stipulated in the offering memorandum of the Series
Trust In particular, the Notes issued by Serenade Investment Corporation SA were valued at the price
available as of the relevant valuation day. For AUD Denominated Units, the market value of the
investment was AUD 24,517,625.00 and for USD Denominated Units, the market value of the
investment was USD 101,589,698.53. These market values were used in the calculation of the net
asset values for AUD Denominated Units and USD Denominated Unit that were reported by the
Administrator,

For the purpose of the preparation of these financial statements, amended prices have been used to
value the Investments in Notes as at December 21, 2019,

Far AUD Denominated Units, the market value of the investment using the amended closing prices
amounted to AUD 24,216,282.58 (a reduction in market value of AUD 301,342.42). The adjusted net
asset value is AUD 28,608,195.83 and a net asset value per unit of AUD 11,173 as at December 31,
2019, This would correspond to a net asset value perunit 1.05% lower than the net asset value per
unit_reported by the Administrator,

For USD Denominated Units, the market value of the investment using the amended closing price
amounted to USD 100,777,237.51 (a reduction in market value of USD 812,461.02). The adjusted net
asset value is USD 116,844,494.02 and a net asset value per unit of USD 10.920 as at December 31,
2019. This would correspond to a net asset value per unit 0.69% lower than the net asset value per
unit reported by the Administrator,
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

{As at December 31, 2019)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802

Note 14 - Subsequent events

In preparing these financial statements, the Series Trust has evaluated and disclosed all material

subsequent events up to the date of the auditor's report, which is the date that the finandal statements
were available to be issued.

In response to the impact of the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak, the Manager has successfully tested
and Implemented buslness continulty procedures that have Included the majority of the Manager's staff
working from home, pausing all international travel, asking staff to aveid public transport and
introducing other social distancing measures in accordance with relevant government guidance. The
Manager is also monitoring the BCP effectiveness of key service providers. The pandemic is causing
significant financial market and social dislocation and the ultimate extent of the effect of this on the
Series Trust is uncertain.
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89,140,111.88 9,710,032,387
120,024 .96 13,074,319
89,020,086.92 9,696,958,068
8,347,321.700
10.665 1,162
2021
21,200,327.91 1,796,727,790
28,544.10 2,419,112
21,171,783.81 1,794,308,678
1,925,444 .420
10.996 932
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2020

40,012,764

839,852

(126,878)

(24,019, 968)

2020 12 31

2020

561,379,079

11,783,124

(1,780,098)

(337,000,151)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 2019
39,835,244 558,888,473
2,992,020 41,978,041
135,570 1,902,047

(20,048, 154) (281,275,601)

16,705,770 234,381,953 22,914,680 321,492,960
(2.621,364) (36,777,737) (3.244,882) (45,525,694)
14,084,406 197,604,216 19,669,798 275,967,266
14,084,406 197,604,216 19,669,798 275,967,266
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2020 12 31
2020 12 31
2020 2020 2019 2019
©) 17,202 241,344 19,753 277,135
6,375,325 89,445,810 9,949,200 139,587,276
©) 623,061 8,741,546
281,524,689 3,949,791,387 257,483,338 3,612,491,232
288,523,075 4,047,978,742 267,432,538 3,752,078,508
18,587,209 260,778,542 7,921,181 111,134,169
©) 3,662,448 51,384,145
18,587,209 260,778,542 11,583,629 162,518,315
269,935,866 3,787,200,200 255,848,909 3,589,560,193
269,953,068 3,787,441,544 255,868,662 3,589,837,328
@ 2,000,200 28,062,806 2,000,200 28,062,806
267,952,868 3,759,378,738 253,868,462 3,561,774,522
269,953,068 3,787,441,544 255,868, 662 3,589,837,328
2021 28
11 30
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2020 12 31

2020 12 31
2019 2,000,200 234,198,664 236,198,864
19,669,798 19,669,798
2019 12 31 2,000,200 253,868,462 255,868,662
2020 2,000,200 253,868,462 255,868,662
14,084,406 14,084,406
2020 12 31 2,000,200 267,952,868 269,953,068
2019 28,062,806 3,285,807,256 3,313,870,062
275,967,266 275,967,266
2019 12 31 28,062,806 3,561,774,522 3,589,837,328
2020 28,062,806 3,561,774,522 3,589,837,328
197,604,216 197,604,216
2020 12 31 28,062,806 3,759,378,738 3,787,441,544
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2020 12 31
2020 12 31

2020 2020 2019 2019
16,705,770 234,381,953 22,914,680 321,492,960
(839,852) (11,783,124) (2,992,020) (41,978,041)
15,865,918 222,598,830 19,922,660 279,514,920
3,573,875 50,141,466 (2,450,828) (34,385,117)
10,666,028 149,644,373 (15,804,301) (221,734,343)
30,105,821 422,384,669 1,667,531 23,395,460
(6,904,322) (96,867,638) (460,512) (6,460,983)
23,201,499 325,517,031 1,207,019 16,934,477
839,852 11,783,124 2,992,020 41,978,041
839,852 11,783,124 2,992,020 41,978,041
24,041,351 337,300,155 4,199,039 58,912,517
257,483,338 3,612,491,232 253,284,299 3,553,578,715
12 31 281,524,689 3,949,791,387 257,483,338 3,612,491,232

11 30 )
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2020

2020

12

15 63 12
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2020 2019

40,012,764 39,835,244

40,012,764 39,835,244
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2020 2019
6,456,764 4,666,331
8,107,596 4,078,536
7,988,111 10,742,855

468,286 468,286
332,108
190,903
476,200 92,146
2020 2019
(20,001) (19,989)
2,638,814 3,261,875
2,551 2,996
2,621,364 3,244,882
16.5 2019  16.5
2020 2019
16,705,770 22,914,680
2,756,452 3,780,923
(115,087) (516,052)
(20,001) (19,989)
2,621,364 3,244,882
2020 2019
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3,662,448 881,075
(6,904,322) (460,513)
(20,001) (19,989)

(@) 2,638,814 3,261,875

(623,061) 3,662,448

2019 22,749 22,749
(2,996) (2,996)

2019 12 31 19,753 19,753
2020 19,753 19,753
(2,551) (2,996)

2020 12 31 17,202 19,753

2020 12 31
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383

2020 2019
7,478,000 7,478,000
9,277,210 8,494,866
2,227,319 2,131,543

750,500 740,100

19,733,029 18,844,509
2020 2019

281,524,689 257,483,338

2020 2019

6,008,164 5,444,468
236,399 3,731,358
130,762 773,374

6,375,325 9,949,200

2020 2019

580,425

4,884,580 4,840,130

460,648 460,648
13,241,981 2,039,978
18,587,209 7,921,181
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2019 580,425

2020 2019

12 31 20,002 2,000,200 20,002 2,000,200

135

2020 12
269,953,068 2019 255,868,662

100,000
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2020 2019
() 40,012,764 39,835,244
() 6,967,624 1,900,215
14
2020 10
18
19
20
25
26 2020
27
28
30
31
1703 32
33
1710 34
36
225 37
1802 38
39
1809 40
41 2020 10 15
1903 42
10

43
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44
2020 21

45
2020 10 30

46
2020 12 15

2012
/

14 18 19 20 25 26 27 28 30 31 32 33 34 36 37 38 39
40 41 42 43 44 45 46

0.01 1.8
19 39 45

50 55 55
2020 12 31 19 39 45
6,967,624 2019

11,900,215

2020

12 31 6,456,764 2019 4,666,331

2020 2019

19,733,029 18,844,509
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2020 2019
(0.33) (831,600)

2020 2019
3,609 727,218 7,932,630 2,989 627,403 4,228,327
4,356,006 2,008,536 12,878,693 3,612,104
(5,970,427) (9,507,160) (4,605,786) (2,020,756)
3,609 (887,203) 434,006 2,989 8,900,310 5,819,675
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2020 2019
5.13 185
(4.35) (130)
5.26 (46,627) 5.77 513,516
2019
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
12
2020 12 31
2020 12 31
13 2020 12 31
2020 12 31
17
39
2021

16
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Ciligroup First Investmant Maragement Limitad
Financial slatamaents for the year anded 31 Dacember 2020

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2020
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2020 2019

$ ¥

Tumover 2 40,012,764 39,835,244
Interest income 839,852 2,992,020
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain {126,878) 135,570
Other operating expenses (24,019,9568) (20,048,154)
Profit before taxation 3 16,705,770 22914680
Income tax 4(a) (2,621,364) (3,244 882)
Profit for the year 14,084,408 19,665,798
Other comprehhensive income for the year - "
Total comprehensive income for the year 14,084 406 19,669,798

The notes on pages 11 1o 30 form part of these financial statements,
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Cigrous First investmant Managemeni Limited
Financial slaterneniz lor the yerr anded 31 December 2020

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020

{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2020 2019
3 3
Non-current asset
Deferred tax assets 4{c) 17,202 18,753
Current assets
Accounts receivable and others assets 7 6,375,325 9,949 200
Tax receivable 4(c) 623,061 -
Cash and cash equivalents -] 281,524 689 257 483,338
253.523.{)_‘_!_51 26?,432,533_
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 8 18,587,200 7,821,181
Tax payables 4(c} - 3,662,448
18,587 209 11,583629
Net current asseis 269,935 856 255,848,809
NET ASSETS 269.953.013_3 255,868 662
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 8(a) 2,000,200 2,000,200
Retained earnings 267,052 888 253 868 4582
TOTAL EQUITY 269,853,068 255,868,662

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of di on 28 APR 2111

Directors

)
)
)
)
)

Tt gl

The noles on pages 11 to 30 form part of these financial statements,
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Citgrong First Invesiment Managemont Limiled

Flpancisl staterments for the year ended 37 Dacember 2020

Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2020

{Expressed in Hong Kong doliars)

Share Retained

capital eamings Total

3 5 5

Balance at 1 January 2019 2,000,200 234,198,664 236,198,864
Total comprehensive income for

the year 19,669 798 19,669,798

Balance at 31 December 2019 2,000,200 253,868 462 255,868 662

Balance at1 January 2020 2,000,200 253 BE68 462 255 868,662
Total comprehensive income for

the year 14,084 406 14,084 406

Balance at 31 December 2020 2,000,200 EET:?EE.SEEI 280 953,058

The notes on pages 11 to 30 form part of these financial statements.
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Citigraup First fnvestment Manapement Lirmdad
Financial statements for the yoeor ended 31 December 2080

Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2020
{Expressed in Hong Kong doflars)

Naole 2020 2013
3 3
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 16,705,770 22914 680
Adjustment for:
Interest income (839.852) (2,892,020)
Operating cashflow before changes in
working capital 15,865,918 19,922 660
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable and
other assels 3,5T3875 (2,450 828)
Increase/{decrease) in accounts payable and
accruad expenses 10,666,028 (15,804,301)
MNet cash generated from operations 30,105,821 1,687 531
Heng Kong profits tax paid (6,904.322) (460,512)
Net cash generated from operating activities 23,201 488 1,207,019
Investing activity
Interest received 839,852 2,992 020
Net cash generated from investing activity 839,852 2,982,020

MNet increase in cash and cash eguivalents 24,041,351 4,192 039
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 257,483,338 253,284,289
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 281,524 639 257,483 338

The notes on pages 11 to 30 form part of these financial statements.

10
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Citigroup First Inveshmant Management Limited
Financial statements for the year andad 31 December 2020

Notes to the financial statements
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies
Statement of coampliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounling Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Company. Note 1(c) provides
infarmation on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Company for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statemenis.

Basis of preparation of the financial statemenis

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical
cost basis.

The Company has chosen Hong Kong dollars as its functional currency which reflacts the
economic substance of the underlying assets and circumstances relevant to the Company.
All values are rounded to the nearest Hong Kong dollar, unless otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumslances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about camying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the

revision affacts only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

11
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Ciigroup Frst investment Managamant Limited
Financial statemants for the year ended 21 December 2020

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Changes in accounting policies

A number of new standards are effective from 1 January 2020 but they do not have a
material effect on the Company's financial statements.

Change in presentation of statement of financial posifion

In prior years, Amounts due from/to affiliated companies were presented separately under
Current assels and Current liabilities. From 2020 onwards, such receivable and payable
have been consolidated into Accounts receivable and other assels as well as Accrued
charges and other payables. The comparative figures have been restated to conform with
the revised presentation.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Company as revenue when it arises from the trading activilies, the
provision of services in the ordinary course of the Company's business.

Revenue is recoghised when control over a product or service is transferred 1o the customer,
or the lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which
the Company is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present value
of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to lhe Company, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest mathod. The Company takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a significant financing
compoenent if the period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Company’s revenue and other income recognition policies are as
follows:

- Feeincome is recognised when the relevant services have been rendered,

- Interest income s recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

12
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Ciigroup Firs! irvestmrent Maragemen Limited
Flaanclad stalements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Pravisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised whan the Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to seitle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the abligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of cutflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated al
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for credit losses (see note
1{1}{v)}, except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtiul dabts.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are recognised when there is objective
evidence of impairment and are measured as the difference between the carrying amount of
the financial asset and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate whera the effect of discounting is material.

Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Company about events that have an impact on the assef's estimated future cash flows such
as significant financial difficulty of the debtor.

Transiation of foreign currencies

Fareign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Manetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange

rates ruling at the end of reporting peried. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

13
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Chmroup First investment Managament Limilad
Financial satermends for bhe year anded 31 Decomber 2050

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities, Current fax and movements in deferred tax assets are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, In which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current lax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporing period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years,

Deferred tax assets arise from deductible temporary differences, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the tax basas. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
Apart from differences which arise on initial recognition of assets and liakilities, all deferred
tax assets to the extent that i is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on lhe expected manner of
realization or seftlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting pericd. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented
saparately from each other and are not offsel. Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, the
Company has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against curent tax
liabilities, The principle of offsetting usually applies to income tax levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity,

Related parties

{a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Company if that
person:

{iy  has control or joint control over the Company;
(i}  has significant influence over the Company; or

{iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the
Company's parent,

14
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Crtigroun Firsf Inwvestment Managenment Limifad
Financigl siafements for the year ended 31 Decembar 2020

Significant accounting policies (continued)
{b)  Anentity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(il  The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the otner entity (or an associale or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Company or an entity related to the Company.

{vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

{vii) A person identified in (a){i) has significant influence over the entity oris a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

{viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Company or fo the Company's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Financial instruments
Initial recognition

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, which nermally will be equal to the
transaction price, plus, in case of a financial asset or financial liability not held at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of the financial asset or financial liability.

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of
financial assets is recognised using trade date accounting. From this date, any gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities are
recorded.

15
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) Crigroup Firzt irvestmend Management Limited
Financiad stafements for the year anded 31 December 2020

1  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)  Classification and subsequent measurement

(A)

Classification of financial assets

On initial recognition, the Company classifies financial assets as measured at
amortised cost or FVWTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL.

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash fiows that are salely
paymeants of principal and interest ("SPPI")

All other financial assets of the Company are measured at FWTPL.
Business model assessment

In making an assessmant of the objective of the business mode! in which a financial
assetis held, the Company considers all of the relevant information about how the
business is managed, including:

- the documented investment strategy and the execulion of this strategy in practice.
This includes whether the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration
of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash
outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's
management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets
held within that business model) and how those risks are managed,

- how the managers of the business are compensated; e.g. whether compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows
collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity

Financial assels that are heid for trading or managed and whose performance is
evalualed on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither hald

to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to
sell financial assets.
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Chtigrowp Firgf lnvesiment Managerment Limiled
Financ/al siatements for the year ended 31 Decembar 2020

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(B)

Assessment whether contraciual cash flows are SPPY!

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time
value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g.
liguidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Company considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows,

- |everage features;

- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specifled assets (e.q. non-
recourse features); and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money {e.g. perodical reset
of interest rates)

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the
period after the Company changes its business meodel for managing financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables include amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, accounts
receivable and other assets and cash and cash equivalents. These assets are
measured at amaortised cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liahilities includes amount due to fellow subsidiaries and accounts payable

and accrued expenses. These liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
sffective interest method.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or where the financial asset togather with substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership, have been transferred.
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Citigroup First investment Management Limifed
Financial statenmants for the year snded 31 December 2020

Significant accounting policies {continued)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

The Company uses the weighted average method to determine realised gains and losses to
be recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
derecognition.

Offsetling

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneocusly.

Impairment

The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the asset) has not increased significantly since initial recognition

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it
is more than 30 days past due,

The Company considers a financial instrument to have low credit risk when its credit risk
rating is equivalent to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade'.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from defauit events that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporling date {or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum pericd considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Company is exposed to credit risk,

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measurad as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive),

ECLs are discountad at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.
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Fingncial sistamants for the yeer eaded J1 Decembear 2020

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Credil-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data;

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer,

- a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due; or

- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation

Frasentation of allowance for ECLs in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross camying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

Turnover

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of investment management services.

2020 2019

5 s

Investment management fee income 40,012,764 38,835,244
40,012,764 39,835,244
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Frevirraal slatenminds foe the yadr ended 31 Decermber 2020

3 Profit before taxation

Prafit bafore taxation is arrived at after charging:

2020 2019

3 3

Management fee expenses 5,456,764 4 666,331
Sub-manager fee expanses B.107 596 4. 078,536
Legal and professional fee 7.988,111 10,742 855
Auditors’ remuneration 468,286 468,286
Custody expenses 332108 -
Printing expenses 190,903 -
Others 476,200 92,146

4 Income tax

{a) Income tax in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents:

Taxation in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income represents:

2020 2018
5 3

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
Ovar-provision in respect of the prior year (20,001} {19,989)
Provision for Hong Kang Profits Tax for the year 2,638 814 3,261,875

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 2,551 2,998
2,621,364 3,244 BR2

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year is calculated at 16.5% (2019:; 168.5%) of
the estimated assessable profits.
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Citigroup Frat Investmeand Managemen! Limiad
Financial stademants for the year anded 31 Decamber 2020

Income tax (continued)

Reconciliation between income tax and accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

2020 2019

Profit before taxation 16,705,770 22,914,680
National tax an profit before taxation at 16.5% (2019:

16.5%) 2,756,452 3,780,923
Tax effect of non-taxable income and non-deductible

loss {115,087 (516,052)

Over-provision in respect of prior year (20,001) (15,988)

Actual tax expense 2,5_21 364 3,244 882

Income tax in the statement of financlal position represents:

{Tax receivable)/Current taxation in the stalement of financial position represents:

Nole 2020 2019
$ $
Current taxation bought forward 3,662,448 881,075
Profits Tax Paid (6,904,322) (480,513)
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating to
pricr years (20,001} (19,989}
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the
year 4(a) 2,638,814 3,261,875
{623,081) 3,662,448
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Income tax {continued)

Deferred lax assels recognised:

The components of defemred tax assets recognised in the statement of financial position and

the movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation in

excess of the
refated
deprecialion
allowances Total
g ]
At 1 January 20119 22,748 22,748
Charged to statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive incomea (2,9596) (2,956)
At 31 December 2019 19,753 19,753
At 1 January 2020 19,753 19,753
Charged to statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income (2,551) {2,9596)
At 31 December 2020 17,202 19,753

As at 31 December 2020, there is no significant deferred tax asset ar liability not recognised

or provided for (2019: SNil).

Directors' emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to saction 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulations are as follows:

2018
3

7,478,000
8,404 B66
2,131,543

740,100

2020

5

Directors’ fees 5
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 7,478,000
Discretionary bonuses 8,277,210
Share based payments 2227319
Retirement scheme contributions 750,500
19,733,029

18,844,509
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Citigroup First Imvesiment Manpgemernd Limiod
Financial statamanis for the yeor andad 31 Decembar 2020

2020 2019
$ 3

281,524,680 257 483,338

Accounts receivable and other assets

Investment management fee receivable
Legal and professional fee receivable

Othars

2020 2019

3 $
6,008,164 5,444 468
236,399 3,731,358
130,762 773,374
6,375,325 9,948,200

Al of the above fee receivables are due from funds managed by the Company. All the fee
receivables are interest free, unsecured and expecied to be settled within three months.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Sub-manager fee payable

Legal and professional fee payable

Audit fee
Other payable

2020 2019

$ $

. 580,425
4,884,580 4,840,130
460,648 460,646
13,241,981 2,039,978
18,587,209 7,921,181

Included in sub-manager fee payable is an amount due to a fellow subsidiary of SNil (2019:
$580,425). All accounts payable and accrued charges are interest free, unsecured and
expected to ba sattled within three months,
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Share capital
Issued share capital
2020 2019
No. of No. of
shares Amourt shares Amourit
5 $
Ordinary shares, issued and
fully paid:

At 1 January and 31 December 20,002 2,005.2{]9 20,002 B 2,000,200

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares
of the Company do not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are enfitled to receive dividends as declared fram time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Capital management

The Company's primary cbjective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concem. As the Company is part of a larger group, the
Company's sources of additional capital and policies for distribution of excess capital may
also be affected by the group's capital management objectives.

The Company defines “capital” as including all components of equity. On this basis the
amount of capital employed at 31 December 2020 was $269,553,068 (2018: $255,868,662).

The Company's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the
capital management practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adjustments are
made to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affeciing the
Company or the group, to the extent that these do not conflict with the directors’ fiduciary
duties towards the Company or the requirements of the Hong Keng Companies Ordinance.

The results of the directors’ review of the Company's capilal structure are used as a basis for
the determination of the level of dividends, if any, that are declared.

As a licensed corporation registered under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance,
the Company is also subject to the capital requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules ("FRR"). The minimum liquid capital requirement is the
higher of $100,000 and the variable required liquid capital as defined in the FRR. The
Company monitors its complianca with the requirements of the FRR on a daily basis. The
Company complied with the requirements of the FRR at all times during the year.
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Civgrap Firat investiment Management Limited
Fumancial sfatermants for the vesr anded 31 Decambar 2020

Material related party transactions

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company had
transactions in the normal course of business with related parlies as fallows:

Fee income and expenses

Note 2020 20189
3 $
Fee income
Investment management fea income (i) 40,012,764 38,835,244
Fee expenses
Sub-manager fee expenses {iii) 6.967 624 1,900,215

The Company is the fund manager of the following funds during the year:

Hybrid Tri-Asset Fund (JPY) ("Fund Series 14") (Terminated on & Oct 2020)
Asia High Yield Bond Fund ("Fund Series 18"

Mexico Bond Fund (“Fund Series 187)

Templeton Global Bond Fund Foreign Currency Series (‘'Fund Series 207)
Global Balance Plus Fund (*Fund Series 25")

Morth American Equity Income Covered Call Strategy Fund {"Fund Series 28"}
{Terminated on 5 Jun 2020)

US Focused Growth Equity Foreign Currency Series (“Fund Series 277)
Treasury Premium Plus Fund ("Fund Series 287)

Fixed Income Fund (*Fund Series 307)

Treasury Premium Plus Il Fund ("Fund Series 31°)

USD Denominated Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1703 (*Fund Series 327)

JPN High Dividend Equity with Short Index Allocation (*Fund Series 337)
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Cigrow First investmen! Mansgement Limited
Firvenoiad staterments for the yesr ended 31 December 2020

Material related party transactions (continued)

- USD Dencminated Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1710 ("Furd Series 347)

- JGB Asset Swap Fund ("Fund Series 367)

- Nikkei 225 Intraday Fund {*Fund Series 37")

- Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802 ("Fund Series 38")

- China Heng Kong Equity Opportunities Fund (*Fund Series 39")

- Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1808 ("Fund Series 407}

= Multi Asset Systematic Strategies Fund ("Fund Series 41") {Launched on 15 Oct 2020)
- Target Setling At Maturity Fund 1903 ("Fund Series 42°)

- Flexibeta Fund (VTS5 Defensive and VT10 Active) ("Fund Series 437)

= USD Denominated Citigroup Mote, Return Referring the High Watermark of Global Multi
Asset Strategy Fund ("Fund Series 44”) (Launched on 21 Jan 2020)

- Global Muli-Thematic Equity Fund (*Fund Series 457) (Launched on 30 Oct 2020)

- US Equity Intraday Momentum Fund {"Fund Series 48" (Launched on 15 Dec 2020)

- CGMYL Index Target Volatility Fund 2012 (SP) {"CGMYL")

- Kokusai Turkish Bond Open (1M} Active Currency Hedge ("KAM")

The Company is entitled to fee income from the following funds under its management:
fnvestment management/advisory fee income

For Fund Series 14, 18, 19, 20, 25, 26, 27, 28, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42,
43, 44, 45, 46, CGMYL and KAM, fees are calculated at 0.01% to 1.8% per annum of the net
asset value of the funds.

Pursuant to the sub-management agreement signed between the Company and the
sub-managers for Series 19, 39 and 45, the sub-managers’ fee expenses are payable to the
sub-managers calculated at 50%,55% and 55% regpectively of the gross management fee

income received. The total sub-managers’ fee expenses paid to the sub-managers for
Series 189, 39 and 45 as at 31 December 2020 amounted to $6 967 624 (2018: $1,800,215).
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Citigroup First Investment Manegement Lvnited
Financial stedements for the year anded 31 December 2020

Material related party transactions (continued)

Management fee expenses

The Company paid management fee expenses to fellow subsidiaries, which provided
ancillary sale support services to the Company., The management fee expense for the
reporting period as at 31 December 2020 amounted to $6 456,764 (2019: $4,666,331).
Key management personnel emoluments

Besides the directors’ emoluments disclosed in note 5, there were no other key management
personnel emaluments.

2020 2019
5 3
Key management personnel emoluments 19,723,029 18,844 509

Amounts disclosed emoluments to certain key management personnel were paid by group
companies of the Company. The Company did not direclly reimburse the group companies
for the sarvice provided,

Financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks and foreign currency risk arise in the
normal course of the Company’s business. These risks are managed by the Company's
financial management policies and practices described below.

Credit risk

The Company's credit risk is primarily altributable to cash and cash equivalents held at a
feliow subsidiary bank and outstanding fees receivable arising from the Company's
investment management activities. Management has a credit policy in place and exposure to
credit risks is monitored on an ongoing basis.

Management fee receivables are regularly reviewed and settled on a regular schedule. For
the balance due from fellow subsidiaries, management considers the default risk of the
financial assets placed with the group companies to be remote.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of these financial
assets as of the end of the reporting period.
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Citigroup First Invesiment Mansgement Limifad
Financial stalaments for the year énded 31 December 2020

Financial instruments (continued)
Liguidity risk

The Company's liquidity risk management process is integrated into the Consolidated Parent
Company and Broker Dealer liquidity and funding process and liquidity monitoring
framework. Citigraup policy requires Consolidated Parent Company and Broker Dealer
{which the Company operating within) to maintain a strang liquidity position and ensure
sufficient cash flows to meet both expected and unexpected current and future cash flow and
collateral needs.

At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2018, all financial liabilities matura within one year
or are repayable on demand. Details of the earliest contractual settlement dates of the
financial liabilities are disclosed in notes 8.

Interest rate risk

The Company does not have any fixed deposits in 2020 which the exposure to interest rate
risk to the extent that it eamns bank interest on cash and cash equivalents is insignificant.
The Company was exposed to interest rate risk only to the extent that it earns bank interest
on cash and cash equivalents in 2018,

Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the estimated changes in the Company’s profit before tax in

response to estimated changes in interest rale with all other vanables held constant at the
end of the reporting period.

2020 2018
Profit Profit
before fax before tax
increase/ increase’
(decrease) (decrease)
% % % 5
Changes in interest rate
- Increase - - . -
- Decreass - . (0.33) (831,800)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the annualised impact on the Company's profit
before tax that would arise assuming that the change in inferest rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Company which expose the Company to interest rate risk at the end of reporting
period.

Currency risk

Currency risk arises from the possibility that changes in foreign exchange rate wil! impact the
value of financial instruments,

Te minimise the exposures to foreign currency risk, management ensures that the net
exposure is kept at an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to cover the foreign currencias.
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Citigroup Fost Invesimant Maragemant Limitad
Fipancial slatemants for iha year anded 31 Dacamber 2020

Financial instruments {continued)
Exposure lo currency risk
The fol'owing table details the Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting period to

currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the Company to which they relate.

2020 2015
Ausiraian Japanese Us Apsiralian Japaness us
Doliars Yen Dollars Doflars Yen Dobary
HED HrD HED H¥D HED HKD
equivaent Bqubvalent equivalent equivakant equivaent equivalert
Cash and cash
equivalents 3,608 127218 7932 630 2989 B27 403 & 228, 3F7
Accounis receivable
and othesr azssis . & 356 005 2,008 535 - 12 678,893 J012 104
Accounts payable
and accrued
RS - {5,870 427} (8,507 18 (4.605.785) {2/020,758)
Cverall nat
BXPOSLNS 3608 {BA7,203) 434,005 2583 3,500,310 5318678

Hong Kong daollar ("HKD") is pegged to the United States dollar ("USD"), the Company
therefore consider the risk of movements in exchange rates between the USD and the HKD
to be insignificant,

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change on the Company's profit before tax
that would arise if foreign exchange rate to which the Company has significant exposure at
the end of reporiing period had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

2020 20718
Increase/ Increase/

{decreasea) Increase/ (decraase) Increase/
in foreign {decrease) in foreign (decreasea)
axchange on profif exchange an profit

rates before tax rates before tax

% § % 3

Australian dollars 513 185 - -
= = (4.33) (130)

Japanese Yen 5.26 (46,627) 577 513,516

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Company which expose the Company
to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including intercompany payables
and receivables that are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2019,
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Fimamnzigl staterments for the year ended 31 December 2020

Financial instruments (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabliities

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are considered not to be matenally different
from the carrying values in the slatement of financial position as at 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019,

Immediate parent and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2020, the directors consider the Company's immediate parent to be
Citigroup Global Markets Hong Kong Holdings Limited, which was incorparated in Hong
Kong. This entity produces financial statements but not available for public use. Its ultimate
controlling party at 31 December 2020 is considered to be Citigroup Inc., which was
incorporated in the United States of America. Citigroup Inc. produces consclidated financial
statements under generally accepled accounting principles in the United States of America,
which are available for public use,

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2020

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amandments and a new standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2020 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These developments include the following which may be relevant to
the company.

Effective for
accounting penods
beginning on or after
Amendments to HKFRS 8, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and 1 January 2021
HKFRSE 16, Inferest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Refarence fo the Conceplual Framework 1 January 2022
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Flant and Equipment: Proceeds 1 January 2022
before Iniended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fuifiling a 1 January 2022
Conlract
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Currant or 1 January 2023
Naorm-current

The Company is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
developments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the financial statements.
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2021 2,592 28 2,347
91.67
CIBC 1965
2021 9,015 4,448 118 9,949
2021 30
131.99

Société Anonyme

2021 963

2021 875 5,000
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1.5 2019 12
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802 (the “Series Trust”), a
series trust of Red Arc Glaobal Investments (Cayman) Trust, which comprise the statement of net assets and
schedule of investments as at December 31, 2020, the statement of operations and changes in net assets for the
year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al materia respects, the financial
position of the Series Trust as at December 31, 2020, and the results of its operations and changes in its net
assets for the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to
investment fundsin Luxembourg.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standard) (“IESBA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The Series Trust may translate these financial statements and our auditors report from English to Japanese.
We have not been engaged to perform any procedures over the trandation. In the event of any inconsistencies
between the English and the Japanese versions of the financia statements and our auditors report, the English
version shall prevail.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the general information
and report of board of directors of the manager included on pages 5 to 8, statistical information included on
page 15 and classification of investments by country and by economical sector included on page 17, but does
not include the financia statements and our auditors report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financia statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to investment funds in Luxembourg, and

for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no redistic aternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professiona judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Series Trust’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management of the Series Trust.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether amaterial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

KPMG

June 8, 2021
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Independent auditor's report to the member of
Citigroup First Investment Management Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Report on the audit of the financia statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Citigroup First Investment Management Limited (“the Company”) set out
on pages 7 to 30, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the statement of profit of
loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2020 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financia Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS’) and with reference to
Practice Note 820 (Revised), The audit of licensed corporations and associated entities of intermediaries, issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA'
s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
abasisfor our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises al the information included in
the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
arerequired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financia statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept
under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and to
report to you on the other matters set out in the preceding paragraph, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Accounts and Audit) Rules

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin interna control that we identify during our audit.

Report on matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts
and Audit) Rules.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince's Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong
28 April 2021
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1802 (the “Series Trust”), a
series trust of Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust, which comprise the statement of net assets and
schedule of investments as at December 31, 2019, the statement of operations and changes in net assets for the
year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financia
position of the Series Trust as at December 31, 2019, and the results of its operations and changes in its net
assets for the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Luxembourg
applicable to investment funds.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The Series Trust may translate these financial statements and our auditors report from English to Japanese.
We have not been engaged to perform any procedures over the trandation. In the event of any inconsistencies
between the English and the Japanese versions of the financial statements and our auditors report, the English
version shall prevail.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included on pages 3 to 8, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financia statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Satements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financia statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Luxembourg applicable to investment funds, and

for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professiona judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

KPMG

May 13, 2020

261/261



	表紙
	本文
	第一部ファンド情報
	第１ファンドの状況
	１ファンドの性格
	（１）ファンドの目的及び基本的性格
	（２）ファンドの沿革
	（３）ファンドの仕組み
	（４）ファンドに係る法制度の概要
	（５）開示制度の概要
	（６）監督官庁の概要

	２投資方針
	（１）投資方針
	（２）投資対象
	（３）運用体制
	（４）分配方針
	（５）投資制限

	３投資リスク
	４手数料等及び税金
	（１）申込手数料
	（２）買戻し手数料
	（３）管理報酬等
	（４）その他の手数料等
	（５）課税上の取扱い

	５運用状況
	（１）投資状況
	（２）投資資産
	①投資有価証券の主要銘柄
	②投資不動産物件
	③その他投資資産の主要なもの

	（３）運用実績
	①純資産の推移
	②分配の推移
	③収益率の推移

	（４）販売及び買戻しの実績


	第２管理及び運営
	１申込（販売）手続等
	２買戻し手続等
	３資産管理等の概要
	（１）資産の評価
	（２）保管
	（３）信託期間
	（４）計算期間
	（５）その他

	４受益者の権利等
	（１）受益者の権利等
	（２）為替管理上の取扱い
	（３）本邦における代理人
	（４）裁判管轄等


	第３ファンドの経理状況
	１財務諸表
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書
	（３）投資有価証券明細表等

	２ファンドの現況
	純資産額計算書


	第４外国投資信託受益証券事務の概要

	第二部特別情報
	第１管理会社の概況
	１管理会社の概況
	２事業の内容及び営業の概況
	３管理会社の経理状況
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書

	４利害関係人との取引制限
	５その他

	第２その他の関係法人の概況
	１名称、資本金の額及び事業の内容
	２関係業務の概要
	３資本関係

	第３投資信託制度の概要
	第４参考情報
	第５その他

	監査報告書

